

THE HOME OFFICE, published by Fred Hyatt, 400 State St, Brooklyn, NY 11217 is devoted to the postal play of "Colonia" plus a limited number of selected variant and Diplomacy games. The zine is published once a month, with due dates falling at 12 NOON of the first Saturday of each month, unless otherwise noted.

The subscription rate is 12/\$4.00. The Game Fee is \$2.00.

GAME OPENINGS: It would appear that "once a variant zine, always a variant zine"!! The response to my "new subscriber" Diplomacy game has been miserable. However, four of you beautiful people have signed up for "the next "Colonia" game"!! Also, a current subscriber as said to sign him up if, and when, the game opens to "oldies". A second current subscriber is also considering entering the game, "if needed".

So, the Diplomacy game is withdrawn, and "Colonia V" is taking its place. I'm not terribly eager to GM another "Colonia" game at present, so there will be a guest GM. The GM will be Eugene Paulson, RRT #2 Box 51D, Clayton Wisconsin 54004.

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT FROM Rob Walker

Since my announcement on the Boardman Numbers, John Boardman has reconsidered his position on the matter. I am happy to report that he no longer opposes the Custodian's voluntary \$1 contribution and has in fact sent funds to the BNC. It's unfortunate that John (apparently on bad information from another quarter) jumped to the wrong conclusion. However, this problem has been worked out and I retract my previous criticism of John.

The "Salvatore Colombo Affair" has finally been settled to my satisfaction, and nothing more will be said about it. Most of you are unaware of the "Affair", but for those of you who are aware of it, let it suffice to say the "Salvatore Colombo" is no longer playing in THE HOME OFFICE. Victor Ricci will take over his position in 1979Mdl.

I came to the conclusion that the "rating" system I devised for "Colonia" players is grossly unfair, and makes rating a stand-by almost impossible. The system not only rewarded a player for doing well, but punished him for doing badly and encouraged drop-Outs in games not going well for a given player. So, I decided to adopt a system suggested by Lee Kendter. There will be 9 "win" points awarded for each game, plus "survivor" points based on the number of supply centers held by the survivors, at the rate of .01 points per supply center. Thus, a 50 Supply Center win will give the winner 9.50 points, while a 6 center survivor will be awarded .06. Stand-bys will be awarded points.

Based on this system, and the results of two more completed "Colonia" games, the new ranking appears on Page 2. (Sorry Walter, you lost first place (at least for the time being)).

- *****
GOAs: Glenn Ledder, 47 Snowden, Schenectady, NY 12304 (1979Dfh)
Richard Kovalcik, Jr., 9 Ladd Place, Watertown, Ma. 02172 (1979IO)
M. R. Gemignani, c/o Diane Sue Miller, 910 Imperial Ave., Los Angeles, California 90245 (1979IO, 1979Mdl, 1979Ffh)

COLONIA PLAYER RANKING.

This ranking is based on the results of 6 completed games: 1974ADfh, 1975Bkfh, 1975BLfh, 1975Ufh, 1976Pfh and 1979Lfh.

<u>RANK</u>	<u>PLAYER</u>	<u>POINTS</u>
1.	Fred Hyatt	15.84
2	Karl Scheutz	7.67
3	Gene Prosnitz	5.82
4	Arnold Proujansky	4.30
5	Robert Stimmel	3.59
6	Walter Blank	3.26
7	Russell Fox	3.22
8	Phil Cooper	3.19
9	Bert Leighton	3.16
10	Jon Reich	1.76
11	Richard Ware	1.47
12	Victor Ricci	.23
13	Peggy Gemignani	.21
14	? Oliver	.16
15	Conrad Struckman	.15
	Richard Greenwell	.15
16	Glenn Taylor	.14
17	Robert Chcek	.11
18	Bob Kluge	.09
	Eugene Paulson	.09
	? Vesneske	.09
	John Zipper	.09
19	Steve Norris	.08
	Ron Stephens	.08
20	Terry Lucero	.07
21	Matt Diller	.04
	Lee Kendter, SR	.04

A number of the players listed above are no longer active in playing "Colonia", or even in the hobby itself. At least one person is no longer living.

This listing is a complete roster of "Colonia" winners and survivors. As more games end and more names are added to the list, the published list will be truncated somewhat. I will keep a complete listing in my files and, from time to time, will publish the entire list.

As each game ends, it is my intention to up-date the ranking and to publish that up-dated list. ((I wonder how long I can hang on to First Place????))
* * * * *

Some of you have asked if I will be at DipCon, since I cannot make it to Origins this year. The answer to that is "no". It is too much money to spend for such a short time. Besides, I'll probably be in Philadelphia that week-end.

* * * * *

I have it on excellent authority that "The Empire Strikes Back" opens in New York on May 22, 1980. Unfortunately, I don't know when it will open in other cities, but I suspect that it will open in a number of places at the same time (give or take a day or two). Phil Cooper has seen the "coming attractions" and he tells me that it looks as good as, if not better than, "Star Wars"!

1979 Dfh Colonia IV Spring, 1754 GM Gene Prosnitz

AUSTRIA (HYATT): A FLA-VZA, F GOM (C) A FLA-VZA, F CUB-WIN,
A OHI-ONT, A MAS (S) A OHI-ONT, A ARG-BOR, F LGN-SAV, F WMD-LGN,
A TOU (S) A ARG-BOR, F TYR (S) A TUN, A TUN (S) SPAN. A ALG-TAU,
A BOS-GAL, A ~~GRE-LIB~~, F ION (C) A GRE-LIB, A POL (S) A SIL-PSA,
A SIL-PSA, A VIE-BAV, F EPC-NPC, F HAW (S) F EPC-NPAC, F PYA (S)
F EPC-NPC, F WAK-MEL, F TAR-MEL.

CHINA (KEMPER): A WUH-CHG, A PEK-WUH, A SIA (S) A BMA, A BMA (S) A BEN,
A KAS-MAH, A BEN (S) A KAS-MAH, A SKG-AFG, F WPC-SLS, F MNL-WPC,
F NWG-COR, F DVO-TIM, F CAM-SCS, F AMO-ECS.

ENGLAND (COOPER): A ECU-COL, F GAL-PRU, F GOT-GOP, A A BHA-MGO,
F NGS-EDI, F NTH-ENG, A BNN-NIG, A DAK-GHA, F MAT (S) A DAK-GHA,
A NUM-TBK, A ASH (S) A MUM-TBK, A YUN-BMA, F DIE-SIO.

FRANCE (BAUMEISTER): A QUE H, A TBK H (ANNI), A GHA H (anni).

NETHERLANDS (PAULSON): A BLM-RCF, F BBE-VER, F EAT-CAN (disl, ret to
IRE, NAT, GBE, BBY, LIS or OTB), F AZO (S) F EAT-CAN, F WAT-EAT,
F BOR-BRI, A PAR(S) F BOR-BRI, F HAN^owc)-DEN, F HEL (S) F HAN^owc)-DEN,
A ANG-KAL, A GAB-CON, F GOA-BBL, F WIO (S) F GOA-BBL, A NIZ-KHA,
F PIE (S) A NIZ-KHA.

OTTOMAN (DOELLING): A BUL H, F AEG (S) A BUL, A EGY H, F YEM-ARS,
A ARA-YEM, F PNG (S) F YEM-ARS, A UZB (S) A AFG, A AFG (S) A UZB,
A SIN-KHA, A KHA-NIZ, (disl, ret to PUN or OTB), A MAH (S) A KHA-NIZ,
(disl, ret to PUN, NEP, CIR or OTB), F BBL-GOA (disl, ret to CEY, CIR,
AND, EIB, or OTB), F TAH H, F AUS-COR.

PORTUGAL (SCHLEINKOFER): A YUK (S) A ONT, A ONT (S) A YUK, F CAN-EAT,
F IRI (S) F CAN-EAT, F FAR (S) F CAN-EAT, F MAL H, F GAA (S) F NPC,
F NPC (S) F SPC-EPC, (disl, ret to MIC, JAP, SIB, ORE, SOO or OTB,
F SPC-EPC, F ARN-COR, F SAM-SPC, F COR-TAS.

RUSSIA (LEDDER): F NWY-NTH, F SWE-SKA, F BAR-NGS, A LIT H, A DEN H,
(disl, ret to SWE or OTB), A STP-PSA, F BAL (C) A STP-PSA, A KAR-NWY,
F VEP-SAH, A SAH-VOL, F MRC H, A TAU (S) F MRC, (disl, ret to NUM or OTB.
A OMS H, A MON-GBI, A MAN-GBI.

SPAIN (BLANK): A UTA-CAL, A TEX-MIS, A MTA (S) A TEX-MIS, F CAR (C)
AUST. A FLA-VZA, A LEO (S) AUST. A ARG-BOR, A HUE-LAG, F BIB (S) A
HUE-LAG, F VAL H, A MAD (S) F VAL, A ALG-TAU, F ETH-SOM, A MOZ-NAT,
A ZAM (S) NETH A ANG-KAL, A KAM-NIG, A SOM-KEN, F MLA-MIS, F MEX(wc)-GOT.

PRESS:

MADRID: An offer I couldnt refuse---The devil made me do it.

EMPEROR TO OTTOMAN: My name is not Dave.

Fall moves due Wed, June 4.

1979AfH Colonia IV Fall 1754 GM: Fred Hyatt

AUSTRIA (CD) No Units

CHINA (Gemignani, resigns) A Ctn H/DIS. GM Will remove in Winter/ F Cam
-For/IMP/.

ENGLAND (Cooper) F Hel /r/ Nth; F Eat /f/ Wat; A Con /r/ Fez; F Gog /f/
Tog; F Gos /r/ Mla. A Pru (s) A Ecu - Ama, A Ecu - Ama, F Tog - Nig,
A Fez - Nig, A Sia (s) F Bma, F Mla (s) A Sia, F Bma (s) A Sia, F Mls -
Eio, F Ire - Eat, F Iri-(s) F Ire - Eat, F Wat (s) F Ire - Wat, F Eng - Hel,
F Ska (s) F Eng - Hel, F Nth (s) F Eng - Hel

FRANCE(Schiwautz) A Ont (s) A Ohi, A Ohi (s) A Vir, A Vir (s) A Ohi,
F Bby (s) PORTUGUESE F Eat, F Bri (s) NETHERLANDS F Hag - Eng, A Ven- Vie
A Rhi (s) NETHERLANDS F Han, F Mrc H, A Tau - Num, A Vol - Gha, F Ash - Tog
F Sen - Vep, F Gbs - Nat, F Mat (s) PORTUGUESE F Rcf - Bha/NSO/ A Sav - Sss

NETHERLANDS (Prosnitz) F Win - Sur, A Jun - Mgo, A Col (s) SPANISH A Pan -
Ecu, A Ama - Pru/DIS /r/ Bol, Mns, Jun, Otb/ F Han(wc) (s) F Hel - Den,
F Hel - Den/DIS /r/ Hag, otb/ F Hag - Eng, A Ant (s) F Hag/OTM/ A Bav
(s) FRENCH A Ven - Vie, A Ang - Gab, A Con (s) A Ang - Gab, A Ben - Mah,
A Kha (s) A Ben - Mah, A Niz (s) A Ben - Mah, F Bbl - Ben, F Wio - Eio

PORTUGAL(Lipscomb) NMR: F Eat ANNI/ F Azo, A Leo, F Can, A Mis, A Mta,
A Cal, F Gog, F Tim, F Spc, F Ano, F Tar, F Rcf, F Ber, F Sea, F Nwg,
F Lás, F Gaa, A Moz, F Sah all hold

OTTOMAN(Scheutz) A Vie (s) RUSSIAN A Sil - Bav, (F ion /r/ aeg) F Tri - Adr
A Bos - Tri, A Gre Hn F Aeg - Ion, F Emd (s) Aeg - Ion/DIS /r/ izm, egy,
syr, jer(wc), F Oma (s) F Png - Ars, F Png - Ars, A Per H, A Pun (s)
RUSSIAN A Mah, F Pya (s) RUSSIAN F Wpc - Iwo, F Mel - Wak, F Epc - Wak,
F Red - Yem

RUSSIA(Kluge) A Bha H, F Bra (s) A Bha, F Swa H, F Bal (s) A Psa - Han,
A Psa - Han, A Sil - Bav, A Mor - Sil, F Den (s) A Psa - Han, A Tib - Nep,
A Mah (s) OTTOMAN A Pun - Kah/NSO/DIS /r/ Kas, Cir, Otb/ A Chg - Wuh,
F Amo - Ctn, A Sze (s) F Amo - Ctn, F Soj - Jap, F Wpc - Iwo, F NPC - Mic,
A Sib - Ore(???) F Ecs - Scs

SPAIN(Schaller) F Fla (s) A Lou, A Lou(s) F Fla, F Got - Epc, A Pan - Ecu,
F Gop(C) A Pan - Ecu, A Mad H, F Nap - Adr, F Ion - Emd, F Tun - Ion,
F Wnd - Tun, F Gad (s) A Yem, F Gos - Cam, F Beo - Mls, F Mnl (s) PORT
F Nwg - Wpc/NSO/ F Iwo (s) PORT. F Nwg - Wpc/NSO/Dis ANNI/ F Gua - Mel,
A Nub - Eth, F Ars (s) NETH. A Kha/DIS /r/ Sms, Sin, Pei, Otb/ A Yem H
A Kam - Nig

FALL 1754 Supply Center Chart:

AUSTRIA	Vie	0	OUT!
CHINA	Ctn , Cam	1	Remove 1
ENGLAND	Ecu, Edi, Lon, Mla, Nwy, Ire, Pru, Sia, Jav, Sum, Tog, Bma	11	Remove 4
FRANCE	Que, Par, Bcr, Tou, Dak, Ohi, Saw, Tbk, Tau, Gha, Mas, Ont, Vol, Vir, Mrc	15	No Change
NETHERLANDS	Sur, Hag, Ant, Ang, Goa, Vza, Han, Den , Zam, Mah, Blm, Kha, Ben, Cey, Niz, Bav, Col, <u>Con, Gab</u>	18	Build 1
OTTOMAN	Ist, Izm, Jer, Bag, Gre, Egy, Per, Oma, Yem , Wak, Afg, Tri, Haw, Bud, <u>Vie</u>	14	No Change
PORTUGAL	Ala, Lis, Lag, Cpc, Aus, Ore, Nal, Azo, Nwz, Cal, Van Fij, Moz, Mal, Sam, Die, Mta, Tar, Ifn, Tah, <u>Nwg</u>	22	Build 2
RUSSIA	Bra, Stp, Mos, Irk, Vla, Bha, Swe, Cri, Mon, Man, Kor, Skg, Pol, Jap, Oms, Agt, Pek, San, Wuh, Amé, <u>Den, Ctn, Iwo</u>	23	Build 4

(Cont'd on page 5)

1979Afh (Cont'd)

Fall 1754 Supply Center List:

SPAIN Mex, Mad, Val, Som, Mnl, Tex, Tun, Ken, ~~Nwg~~, Hon, Pps, Uga, Eth, Lou, Cub, Nap, Gua, Beo, ~~Zwp~~, Fla, Nig, Ecu, Kam 21 Build 1

No stand-by for China will be called. Winter 1754 adjustments and Spring 1755 moves are due 12 NOON, June 7, 1980.

1979Bfh Colonia IV Winter 1754 GM: Fred Hyatt
AUSTRIA(Schaller) Remove A Mas
CHINA(Kendter JR) Build A Gtn, A Wuh, F Amo
ENGLAND (Scheutz) Build A Nig
FRANCE (Ricci) Build A Dak, F Bor, A Par
NETHERLANDS (Kluge) Remove A Skg, F Sms
OTTOMAN (Lipscomb) NBR! A Num /r/ OTB/ Plays 6 short.
PORTUGAL:(Counselman) Remove A Nya, F Cor
RUSSIA (Cooper) Remove F Ura, A Bull, A Bra, F Bal
SPAIN (Prosnitz) Build A Mex, F Som, F Mal, (Plays 1 short)

Spring 1755 orders due 12 NOON, June 7, 1980

1979Cfh Colonia IV Spring 1754 revisited. GM: Phil Cooper
Due to a series of errors, and other incidents which I do not care to go into at the moment, I am taking it upon myself to institute a Summer Season.

What follows is alist of errors and the retreats from Spring 1754.

- Errors: 1) The Spanish move "F Afs - Nwg"was omitted, and labelling it
2 NSU was in error.
2) The Portuguese move F Sea - Gog should have been underlined
3) The Portuguese move F Wat - Gbe isincorrect. It should read
F WAT - GBS.

Summer Retreats are:

PORTUGAL: F Eat /~~S~~/ WAT
OTTOMAN: A Eth /~~F~~/ Ken
NETHERLANDS: A Rhi & A Kha /r/ OTB.

Fall 1754 orders are on filefor everyone, but they may be changed before the Fall 1754 deadline: 9 PM, EDT June 3, 1980.

Also, please take note that henceforth NO telephone orders will be accepted.

1979IO Diplomacy Fall 1983 GM: Fred Hyatt
AUSTRIA (Gemignani) A Vie /r/ Boh, A Gre /r/ Ser; F Aeg - Gre/DIS /r/ Ion,
Eas, Otb/; A Bud - Vie, A Ser (s) F Aeg - Gre;DIS /r/ Alb, Otb/ A Tri (s)
A Bud - Vie
ENGLAND(Cooper) F Bre - Gas, F Mid (s) FRENCH F Por - Spa/NSO/ F Eng - Bre,
F Stp(nc) - Nwy, F Nth (s) F Stp(nc) - Nwy
FRANCE(Tucker) NMR A Pic & F Mar ANNI; A Gas & F Por HOLD
GERMANY(Zipper) A Par (s) A Bel - Pic, A Bel - Pic, A Mun - Boh, A Sil - Gal
A War (s) A Sil - Gal, F Swe (s) ENGLISH F Stp(nc) - Nwy
ITALY(Prosnitz) A Ven (s) AUSTRIAN A Tri; A Pie - Mar, F Lyo (s) A Pie - Mar,
F Wmd - Mid

THE HOME OFFICE, Number 15, Page 6

1979IO (Cont'd)

RUSSIA(Kovalcik) A War /r/ Mos; F Nwy H/DIS /r/ Ska, Bar, Ngw, Otb/ A Gal Bud
A Vie (s) A Gal - Bud, A Rum - Ser, F Sev- Rum, A Mos H (A Vie dis. /r/Tyl/

TURKEY(Sulsberger) A Con (s) A Bul, F Smy - Aeg, F Gre (s) F Smy - Aeg,
A Bul (s) RUSSIAN A Rum - Ser

NOTE: Austria order "A Bud - Vie" underlined in error.

Fall 1903 Supply Center Chart:

Austria: Vie, Tri, Ser , Gre	2 Remove 2
England: Lon, Edi, Lvp, Nwy, Spt, <u>Bre</u>	6 Build 1
France: Par , Mar , Spa, Por, Br	2 Remove 2
Germany: Kie, Mun, Ber, Bel, Den, Hol, <u>Par</u> , <u>Swe</u> , <u>War</u>	9 Build 3
Italy: Ven, Rom, Nap, Tun, <u>Mar</u>	5 Build 1
Russia: Mos, <u>War</u> , Sev, Rum, <u>Sys</u> , Bud, <u>Ser</u>	5 Remove 1
Turkey: Ank. Smy, Con, Bul, <u>Gre</u>	5 Build 1

Winter 1903 and Spring 1904 orders due 12 NOON, June 7, 1980
No stand-by will be called for France.

1979Ffh Colonia V, Winter 1753 ONLY. GM: Fred Hyatt
Concession to Austria-England-Ottoman-Portugal-Russia-Spain vote:

	<u>Yes</u>	<u>No</u>
AUSTRIA		<u>15</u>
China	9	
England		18
France	4	
Ottoman	21	
Portugal		20
Russia		27
Spain	<u>14</u>	<u>80</u>
	<u>48</u>	

The Proposal is defeated. A new draw proposal has been received: A three way draw among Ottoman-Russia-Spain. Votes will be due with the Winter 1754 adjustments. You will be reminded to vote at the proper time.

Winter adjustments:

Austria(Burden) Build FHaw, F Fla
 China(Fun kenbusch) F Kor /r/ Yel; Build A Pek, A Wuh
 England (Mathias) Build F Mla NOTE: F Gos - Scs omitted from Fall 1753
 France (Cheek) A Ont /r/ Que; Remove F Bor, A Gha, A Mis
 Ottoman (Stimmel) Build F Izm, F Bag, F Goa, F Tah, A Ist
 Portugal (Prosnitz) Build A Lis, F Lag, F Aus, A Cpc Play 1 short
 Russia (Schaller) A Sax /r/ Psa; Build A Ifn, A Dak, A Stp, A Cri, Aoms, F Vla
 Spain (Gemignani) No Change

Spring 1754 orders due June 7, 1980, 12 NOON. Orders are on file for everyone.

1979Ffh Press:

ANKARA: Abdul el Stimmel, grand vizar(sic) of the world famous El Stimmel puppet show, denounced the Portuguese treachery today. Said El Stimmel: If it had not been for those treacherous Portuguese dogs, I would have 38 armies and navies to play with. Now I have only 35, and the security of the Ottoman Sultan is in dire jeopardy.

LONDON: Agents of the El Stimmel puppet show journeyed to London today, seeking new recruits. The following ad was posted "English recruits needed for the El Stimmelpuppet show. See the world, have the opportunity to pull a rickshaw through the streets of Malaya, or carry water on both shoulders

through the bazaars of West Africa. Low, 80 hour work week guranteed, with three scrumptious meals of bread and water daily, and the chance to serve to glorious sultan"

1979Efh Fall 1753 Colonia V GM: Fred Hyatt
AUSTRIA (Hooton) MNR A Bou /r/ Otb; F Fla, F Nap, A Sil, A Tri all ANNI;
A Vie, F Mel, F Tar, F Epc all HOLD

CHINA (Sergeant) F Yel /r/ AMO; A Kas - Mah, A Ben (s) A Kas - Mah/DIS /r/
Nep, Yun, Bma, Otb) A Tur - Mon, F Ecs - Yel, F Map H, F Amo (s) F Ecs -
Yel, A Kan (s) A Tur - Mon, A San - Gbi, A Chg (s) A San - Gbi, F Tam H,
F Jeh - Pek

ENGLAND (McPherrren) F Sea /r/ GOG; F Gos - Beo, F Mls - Jav, F And - Sum,
F Bbl+Cey, F Gog (s) A Ang, A Ang H, A Fez - Nub, A Ash - Num, F Eat (s)
F Eng, F Eng (s) F Eat, F Far (s) F Eat, A Mex H, F Got (s) A Mex, F Nwy H
A Col - Ama, F Ecu - Gpa

FRANCE(Scheutz) A Ohi H, A Vir (s) F Bah - Fla, F Gbs - Bah, F Bah - Fla,
F Bri - Bby, A Tou - Bur, A Sss - Vie, A Ven - Tri, A Pps (s) OTTOMAN
F Adr - Nap, F Tyr (s) OTTOMAN A Tun, A Tbk (s) F Gha, F Gha (s) F Dak -
Mat, F Dak - Mat

NETHERLANDS (Schaller) F Gar (s) ENGLISH A Mex, F Cub - Gom, A Sur - Blm,
A Bav - Vie, A Sax - Sil, A Rhi - Bav, A Hag - Rhi, F Den H, A Tan - Uga,
A Rua (s) A Tan - Uga, A Mah - Ben, F Cir (s) A Mah - Ben, A Pun - Mah,
F Pie - Wio

OTTOMAN(Cooper) F Wak - Spc, F Die (s) F Ars - Wio, F Adr - Nap, ATun H,
A Sin (s) A Kha, F Lib (s) A Tun, F Ars - Wio, A Kha (s) NETH. A Mah/OTM/
A Uzb (s) RUSSIAN A Skg, A Afg (s) RUSSIAN A Skg, F Chi (s) F Spc - Pru,
F Spc - Pru, A Bos (s) FRENCH A Ven - Tri, F Ion (s) A Tun, F Oma - Ars,
A Per - Tur

PORTUGAL (Kendter, SR) FGBT - Ano, F Cor - Fij, F Sls - Tar, F Nwg H,
F Sea - Ang, F Cpc - Sea, A Zam (s) F Sea - Ang, A Moz (s) A Zam,
F Vep (s) FRENCH F Dak - Mat, F Azo - Gbe, F Can (s) A Ifn - Azo, A Ifn -
Azo v A Ala - Van, A Cal - Ore, A Mta - Ore, A Lis H

RUSSIA(Zipper) A Rcf - Gha, F Mat (c) A Rcf - Gha/DIS /r/ Bha, Bra, Otb/
F Swa (s) F Mat, F Swe H, F Bot (s) F Swe, A Pol (s) NETH. A Sax - Sil,
A Rum - Gal, A Sib - Oms, A Mon (s) A Gbi - Kan, A Gbi - Kan/DIS /r/ Man, otk
A Skg H, F Man - Jeh, F Soj - Ecs, F Yel - Kor

SPAIN(McLendon) F Gom - Mex(ec), A Tex (s) F Gom - Mex(ec) F Lou H,
F Wmd (s) F Mrc - Alg, A Alg - Tau, A Tau - Num, F Mrc - Alg, A Mad H,
A Uga - Ken/Dis ret Kat, Otb/ F Som - Ken, A Eth - Nub, F Mal - Sio,
F Eio - Jav, F Wpc - Iwo

Supply Center Chart and Press appear on page 8.

No stand-by will be called for Austria.

Winter 1753 and Spring 1754 orders will be due at 12 NOON, June 7, 1980

It appears I do have room here for the press;

1979Efh Press:

Big Bear to Panda Bear: Give me more time!!

1979Efh Fall 1753 Supply Center Chart

AUSTRIA: ~~Fla~~, Vie, ~~Zxx~~, Bud, Haw, ~~Lol~~, ~~Nap~~, Gua, ~~Vix~~, Tar 5 Build 1
 CHINA Pek, San, Wuh, Am~~o~~, ~~Skg~~, Ctn, Jap, ~~Bex~~, Bma, Tib, Tai, ~~Mox~~ 9 Rem 2
 England: Ecu, Edi, Lon, Nig, Mla, Col, Ire, Nwy, Kam, Hon, Tog,
 Gab, Cey, Cam, ~~Fxx~~, Sia, Mex, Ang, Sum, Beo 19 Build 3
 FRANCE: Que, Par, Tou, Bor, Dak, Ohi, Sav, Pps, Vol, Mas, Gha, Tbk,
 Ont, Vir, Fla, Tri 16 Build 3
 OTTOMAN: Ist, Izm, Jer, Bag, Tah, Gre, Per, Afg, Yem, Sam, Egy,
 Oma, Wak, Kha, Tun, Pru, Nap, Die 18 Build 3
 NETHERLANDS: Sur, Han, Ant, Hag, Ang, Gaa, Vza, Den, Mah, Cub,
 Blm, Con, Bav, Niz, Ben, Uga 15 Build 1
 PORTUGAL: Ala, Lis, Iag, Cpc, Aus, Ore, Azo, Nal, Nwz, Cal, Van
 Moz, Nwg, Zam, Ifn, Fij, Mta 17 Build 1
 RUSSIA: Bra, Stp, Mos, Kie, Oms, Vla, Bha, Swe, Cri, Man, Kor, Agt,
 Pol, Rum, Mon 15 Build 1
 SPAIN: Mex, Mad, Val, Som, Mnl, Tex, Uga, Bep, Ken, Mal, Tau, Eth,
 Jav, Lou, Iwo, Mrc 13 NC
 * * * * *

L(& (OOps) 1979Mdl Scotice Scripti III GM: Fred Hyatt
Winter 1017/Spring 1018

CONNACHT(Kendter, SR) Build A Sligo; F Tuam (s) A Lietrim, A Sligo -
Breffny, A Leitrim (s) LEINSTER A Meath - Cashell, A Roscommon (s) A
Leitrim

ENGLAND(Cooper) A York - Newcastle, A Gwynedd - Shropshire, A Shropshire-
Stadford, A Chester (s) A Gwynedd - Shropshire, F N. St. George Channel -
Bristol Channel

KYMRU (Burden) F Cardigan - Bardigan Bay, A Powys - Gwynedd, F Solvay
Firth - Chester Bay, A Hereford - Powys

LEINSTER(Grailey) Build A Wexford; A Wexford - Barrow, A Dffaly -Meath
A Meath - Cashell, A Tyrone - Armagh, F Down (s) A Tyrone - Armagh
F Drogheda Bay (s) F Down

MUNSTER(Schaller) F Galway Bay - Tuam, A Thomond - Leitrim, A Cashell (s)
A Thomond - Leitrim, A Tralee - Cork

ORKNEY(Gemignani) F N. Minch - Minch, F Islay Firth - W. Islay Firth,
F Lorne Bay - Islay Firth, F Kintyre - N. Irish Sea

SCOTLAND(~~Cp/Lo/Abp~~/Ricci) F N. Irish Sea - Islay Firth, F Dundrennen (s) ((?)
A Caithness - Sutherland, F Lismore - North Channel, A Cumberland - Berwick

ULSTER (Scheutz) Remove F Dalriada; F W. Minch - Minch, A Omagh - Donegal,
A Dalriada - Omagh.

As noted on pagel, "SalvatoreColombo" is no longer playing in THE HOME
OFFICE. Victor Ricci is now playing Scotland. Victor lives at 135
Eastern Parkway, Brooklyn, New York 11238

Fall 1018 moves are due 12 NOON, June 7, 1980.

1979Mdl Press:

TYRONE * Orange, Green ...Orange, Green! Why aren't we in France or the
Empire??

DUBLIN: It is a pleasure to have "ally's" negotiations prior to the dead-
line, even if they are lies!!

1979gfh Colonia V Fall 1753 GM: Karl Scheutz

AUSTRIA(Paulson) A Mex - Hon, A Tex - Uta, F Gom - Cub, F Nap - Ion,
A Vie - Tri, A Bav (s) A Rhi - Han, F Tyr (s) F Nap - Ion, A Rhi - Han,
F Aar (s) F Nap - Ion, A Gal - Bos/Dis /r/ Mor, Bud, Otb/ F Npc - Cal

CHINA(Hyatt) F Ecs (s) F For - Scs, F For - Scs, F Scs - Gos, F Vla - Soj,
F Gtn - Cam, A Mon - Man, A Man - Vla, A Kan - Mon, A Ben - Cir, A Yun - Bma
A Nep (s) A Mah, A Mah (s) A Ben - Cir, A Skg (s) A Chg - Kas, A Chg - Kas,
A Sze - Lao

ENGLAND(Hess) A Col /r/ Pan, F Swe /r/ Bot, A Fnd /r/ Nor; A Kam - Gab,
A Ang (s) A Kam - Gab/DIS /r/ Kal, Kat, Otb/ F Beo - Gos, F Jav - Mls,
F Cey - Bbl, A Ama - Ecu, A Pru - Ecu, F Nwy (s) F Bot - Swe, F Bot - Swe
F Eng (s) A Nor - Bri, A Nor - Bri, F Nth - Ska, A Pan - Hon, F Hel - Den/
MIS /r/ Nth, Otb/

FRANCE(Cooper) A Ont (s) A Ohi, A Ohi (s) A Ont, A Vir - Fla, F Aca - Gbs,
F Tog - Nig, A Tou - Sav, A Par (s) F Bri - Nor, ~~XXXXXXXXXX~~ A Num - Tau,
F Bri - Nor, F Bby - Bri, A Vol - Dak, F Mat - Dak, A Sav - Pps

NETHERLANDS (Sulsberger) A Vza (s) A Col, A Col (s) A Blm - Mns, A Blm - Mns,
A Cir - Goa, A Con (s) F Gab - Ang, F Gab - Ang, A Fnd (s) A Han - Rhi,
A Han - Rhi, F Swe H, F Den - Hel, F Hag (s) F Den - Hel

OTTOMAN(Costikyan) A Bul - Bos, A Gre (s) A Bul - Bos, A Tun - Alg,
F Ead - Ion, F Aeg (s) F Ead - Ion, A Afg - Pun, A Pun - Kha, A Oma - Pei,
F Ars (c) A Oma - Pei, A Per - Afg, F Wak - Spc

PORTUGAL (Grailey) F Val /r/ Gib; F Gaa - Ore, A Mta (s) F Gaa - Ore,
A Yuk - Van, F Lis - Leo, F Eat (s) F Lis - Leo, A Lag - Lis, F Gib - Lag,
A Kal - Zam, F Nal - Mzc, A Tan - Uga, F Wic - Mal, F Spc - Tar, F Cor -
Sls, F Tah - Ano, F Afs - Nwg, A Ash - Tog

RUSSIA(McLendon) A Mgo - Bol, A Chi (s) A Mgo - Bol, F Vep - Azo, F Bha H,
A Pol - Gal, A Rum (s) A Pol - Gal, F Bal (s) NETH. F Sws, A Sib H,
A Oms (s) A Sib, A Sah - Mrc, A Lit - Stp

SPAIN (Kendter, SR) A Hue (s) F Val, F Val H, F Wmd (s) A Lib - Tun,
A Lib - Tun, A Eth - Ken, F Pya (s) F Wpc - Gua, F Wpc - Gua, A uta - Cal,
A Bur (s) FRENCH A Sav/OTM/ A Ore (s) A Uta - Cal/DIS /r/ Mis/ Otb/

FALL 1753 Supply Center Chart:

- AUSTRIA: Via, Bud, Tri, ~~Via~~, Haw, Nap, ~~Pps~~, ~~Gaa~~, Lou, Mex, Tex,
 Cub, Bav 10 Remove 1 (or even depending on retreat)
- CHINA: Pek, San, Wuh, Amo, Ctn, Jap, Skg, Ben, Kor, Bma,
 Tib, Mon, Man, Vla, Tai, Mah, Cam 17 Build 2
- ENGLAND: Ecu, ~~Nig~~, Lon, Edi, Mla, ~~Col~~, Ire, Nwy, Kam, ~~Gal~~, Pru,
 Gab, ~~Con~~, Sia, Sum, ~~Ang~~, Jav, Cey, ~~Sw~~, Beo 14 EVEN
- FRANCE: Que, Par, Tou, Dak, Bor, Vol, Sav, Mas, Ohi, Tbk, Gha, Ont, Vir,
~~Tog~~, ~~Bba~~, Tau, Fla, Nig, Pps 17 Build 4 (was 3 short)
- NETHERLANDS: Ant, Hag, Sur, ~~XXX~~, Goa, Vza, Han, Den, ~~Mah~~, ~~Kha~~,
 Niz, ~~Bav~~, Col, Swe, Con, Ang 12 Build 1
- OTTOMAN: Izm, Jer, Bag, Ist, Per, Afg, Yem, Oma, ~~Tah~~,
 Gre, Wak, Kha 11 EVEN
- PORTUGAL: Ala, Lis, Lag, Cpc, Aus, Mta, Moz, Fij, Van, Nal,
 Tar, Nwz, ~~Keb~~, ~~Val~~, Zam, Die, Sam, Nwg, Tah, Ore,
 Tog, Mal, Uga 21 Build 5 (room for 4)

RUSSIA: Mos, Stp, Kie, Bra, Oms, Agt, Ifn, Pol, Cri, Rum, Mrc,
Bha, Azo 13 Build 2

SPAIN: Mad, Som, Mnl, ~~Vga~~, ~~Ora~~, Cal, Eth, Ken, Iwo, Egn,
Val, Gua, Tun 11 Build 1 (or 2
depending on retreat)

WINTER 1753/SPRING 1754 orders due 9 PM EDT, June 4, 1980.

1977CI "Ides of March Game" or "The Orphan". I have sent two notices to the players in this game and have received notice of intent to continue from three of the six players. Of the four viable positions on the board, only Austria has failed to respond. So, listed below is the position after the Winter 1906 adjustments:

AUSTRIA (Dittar 17215 Marygold Ave #42, Fontana, Ca. 92335) has F Adr, A Tyo, F Ion, F Aeg, A Boh, A Gre, F Eas, A Tri
ENGLAND (Rob Kelley) Apt 314, 6038 Richmond Hwy, Alexandria, Virginia 22303
Has F Nwg.

FRANCE (Warren Singer, 100 Beekman St, New York, NY10038) has A Mar, A Pie, F Bre, A Ruh, F Nth, F Tyn, F Hol, A Tus, A Bel.

GERMANY (Jerry Jones, 1854 Wagner St, Pasadena, Ca 91107) has A Mun, A Kie
ITALY (Rich Fedder, 110 W. Kingsley, Ann Arbor, MI. 48103) has F Apu,

F Wes, F Wal, A Bur
RUSSIA (Oren Phipps) 2416 Cloudcroft Sq. Reston, Va 22091 has F Stp(nc), F Nth, A Pru, A Swe, A Ber, A Sev, F Ska, A Den, A Sil, F Rum.

Will David Arnott, 1133 Sumner Ave Apt D-7, N. Charleston, SC. 29406 please send stand-by orders for Austria? (Just kn case he ignores this notice also!)

Also, I have reason to believe that the French player is not interested in continuing unless all six of the above listed players continue the game. So, in the event that he opts out, will Phil Cooper, 19 Dalhgren Place, Brooklyn, NY 11228 please submit stand-by orders for France.

The English and German positions are, admittedly, terrible. However, I will make one for attempt to induce Kelly and Jones to play out the game. If not, then I will have little choice but to put them in Civil Disorder. (Unless someone out there is willing to be a sacrificial lamb!!)

The Spring 1907 orders will be due 12 NOON, June 7, 1980!

THE HOME OFFICE, Number 15
Fred G. Hyatt
400 State St.
Brooklyn, New York 11217



Frances Perkins
USA 15c

Please Stand-By in stand

Your Sub has Expired!
Please Renew!!

Scott Marley (T?)
12682 Swidler Place
Santa Ana, Ca. 92705